
MEETING OF THE POLICY SUBCOMMITTEE 

Monday, January 29, 2018 

5:30 p.m. 

Superintendent’s Conference Room, ARMS 

 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Call to Order & Select Chair         5:30 p.m. 

 

2. Approve Minutes          5:35 p.m. 

 December 18, 2017 

 

3. Public Comment          5:40 p.m. 

 

4. Policies for Discussion          5:45 p.m. 

 

 Student Activities Manual and Fundraising Policies—Sean Mangano 

 Policy JICFC, Policy GBAA, Policy JICK—Changes recommended 

By Doreen Cunningham 

 Policy BDFA: School Councils 

 

5. Next Meeting           6:25 p.m. 

 

6. Other topics not reasonably considered by the Chair 48 hours in advance of the meeting 

 

7. Adjourn           6:30 p.m. 

 



MINUTES OF THE POLICY SUBCOMMITTEE 

December 18, 2017 

5:30 p.m. 

Superintendent’s Conference Room, ARMS 

170 Chestnut Street, Amherst 

 

IN ATTENDANCE:      

Emily Marriott, Chair  Doreen Cunningham, Assistant Superintendent  

Phoebe Hazzard   Eric Fox, public    

Debbie Westmoreland 

ABSENT: 

Stephen Sullivan  

 

Ms. Marriott called the meeting to order at 5:37 p.m.  Ms. Hazzard moved to approve the minutes of November 20, 2017, 

Ms. Westmoreland seconded, and the motion was unanimously approved.  Ms. Marriott welcomed Ms. Cunningham to 

the meeting to talk about policies that need to be updated for equity.  Ms. Cunningham distributed and reviewed a memo 

from Juna Pierre of the Boston Public School District with her recommendations for changes to policies ACA, ACB, 

ACE, JICFC, and JII.  She explained that many of the changes are to ensure that district policies only list state or federally 

protected categories with regard to discrimination complaints since there is no recourse beyond the internal investigation 

for some of the categories currently included.  It was agreed that the policies reviewed will be taken up by the Policy 

Subcommittee at the next meeting.  Ms. Westmoreland will make the recommended changes and have Ms. Cunningham 

review the updates before bringing them to the Policy Subcommittee meeting. 

 

Discussion turned to Policy BEAA: Superintendency Union 26 and the changes suggested by the Amherst and Pelham 

School Committees.  It was agreed that all of the suggested changes, including eliminating the reference to salary 

apportionment, will be made.  Ms. Westmoreland will update the draft and bring copies for the Amherst School 

Committee to vote on at tomorrow night’s meeting.  The policy will be put on the January Pelham School Committee 

agenda for a vote. 

 

The next Policy Subcommittee was set for Monday, January 29 at 5:30 p.m. As noted above, the policies reviewed by Ms. 

Cunningham will be on the agenda, along with the School Council policy.  If he is back from paternity leave, Mr. 

Mangano will be invited to talk the subcommittee about two policies he needs to discuss:  the Student Activity Manual 

and the Fundraising Policy.  Ms. Westmoreland moved to adjourn at 6:30 p.m.  Ms. Hazzard seconded and the motion was 

unanimously approved. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Debbie Westmoreland          

 

 

DOCUMENTS: 

1. Memo to Doreen Cunningham from Juna Pierre 

2. Policy BEAA: Superintendency Union 26 (with Amherst and Pelham SC Edits) 



AMHERST PUBLIC SCHOOLS, PELHAM ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, 

AND AMHERST-PELHAM REGIONAL DISTRICT POLICY MANUAL 

______________________________________________________________________________________  
         JICFC  (formerly 410.19)     

STUDENTS: STUDENT-TO-STUDENT HARASSMENT                                                             

              

Harassment of students by other students will not be tolerated in the Amherst, Pelham, or Amherst-Pelham 

Regional School Districts. This policy is in effect while students are in school buildings, on school grounds, 

on school buses or school-sanctioned transportation, or at school activities held in any location. 

 

Harassment prohibited by the Districts includes, but is not limited to, harassment on the basis of race, 

national origin, age, religion, gender, creed, color, national origin, sexual orientation, gender identity, 

economic status, political party, or disabilitycolor, age, criminal record (inquiries only), physical or mental 

disability, homelessness (student’s only), sex/gender, gender identity, religion, national origin, ancestry, 

sexual orientation, genetics and military status.  Students whose behavior is found to be in violation of this 

policy will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including suspension or expulsion. (see policies:  AC 

Non-Discrimination, JICK Sexual Harassment of Students, JICFB Bullying, and IJNDB Acceptable 

Network Use) 

 

Harassment refers to conduct of a verbal or physical nature that is designed to embarrass, distress, agitate, 

disturb or trouble students when: 

 

   1. Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of a    

     student’s education or of a student’s participation in school programs or activities; 

 2. Submission to or rejection of such conduct by a student is used as the basis for decisions   

     affecting the student, or; 

    3. Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with a student’s performance 

     or creating an intimidating or hostile learning environment. 

 

Harassment as described above may include, but is not limited to: 

 

  1. Verbal, physical, or written harassment or abuse 

 2. Repeated remarks of a demeaning nature 

   3. Implied or explicit threats concerning one’s grades, achievements, or other school matters 

 4. Demeaning jokes, stories, or activities directed at the student 

 

The District will promptly and reasonably investigate allegations of harassment.  

 

Retaliation against a student, because a student has filed a harassment complaint or assisted or participated 

in a harassment investigation or proceeding for bias-based conduct of any kind, is also prohibited. A 

student who is found to have retaliated against another in violation of this policy will be subject to 

disciplinary action up to and including suspension and expulsion 

 

The Superintendent will develop administrative guidelines and procedures for the implementation of this 

policy. 

 

For incidents involving students’ civil rights: 

United States Department of Education Office of Civil Rights (OCR) 

John W. McCormack Post Office and Courthouse 

5 Post Office Square, 8th Floor, Suite 900 

Boston, MA  02109 

(617) 289-0111 

 

For concerns regarding students’ equitable access to education: 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE) 

350 Main Street 

Formatted: Superscript



Malden, MA  02108 

(781) 388-3300 

 

LEGAL REF:  MGL 151B:3A 

            Title VII, Section 703, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 

            Board of Education 603 CMR 26:00 

 

 

Region Voted to Approve: 10/10/06 

Amherst Voted to Approve: 11/14/06 

Pelham Voted to Approve: 11/02/06 

Effective Date: 11/14/06 

 



 
AMHERST PUBLIC SCHOOLS, PELHAM ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, 

AND AMHERST-PELHAM REGIONAL DISTRICT POLICY MANUAL 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
GBAA  (formerly 700.04) 

PERSONNEL:  SEXUAL HARASSMENT IN THE WORKPLACE 

 

In accordance with the requirements of Chapter 278 of the Acts of 1996, the school district hereby affirms 

its commitment to promoting a workplace free of sexual harassment. 

 

It is the goal of the Amherst-Pelham, Amherst and Pelham School districts to promote a workplace that is 

free of sexual harassment.  Sexual harassment of employees occurring in the workplace whether it be in the 

form of physical or verbal harassment and regardless of whether committed by administrative or non-

administrative personnel, teachers, consultants, or community member is unlawful and will not be tolerated 

by the school districts.  Further, any retaliation against an individual who has complained about sexual 

harassment or retaliation against individuals for cooperating with an investigation of a sexual harassment 

complaint is similarly unlawful and will not be tolerated.  To achieve our goal of providing a workplace 

free from sexual harassment, the conduct that is described in this policy will not be tolerated and we have 

provided a procedure by which inappropriate conduct will be treated. 

 

We will respond promptly to complaints of sexual harassment and where it is determined that such 

inappropriate conduct has occurred, we will act promptly to eliminate the conduct and impose such 

corrective action as is necessary, including disciplinary action where appropriate. 

 

DEFINITION:  Massachusetts General Law Chapter 151C, Section S.1 (e) defines sexual harassment as 

“sexual advances, requests for sexual favors and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:  

(a) submission to or rejection of such advances, requests or conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a 

term or condition of employment or as a basis for employment decisions;  or (b) such advances, requests or 

conduct have the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work performance by 

creating an intimidating, hostile, humiliating or sexually offensive educational environment.” 

 

While it is not possible to list all those additional circumstances that may constitute sexual harassment, the 

following are some examples of conduct which if unwelcome, may constitute sexual harassment depending 

upon the totality of the circumstances including the severity of the conduct and its pervasiveness: 

 

 Sexual advances - whether they involve physical touching or not; 

 

 Sexual epithets, jokes, written or oral references to an individual’s sexual conduct, gossip regarding 

one’s sex life; comment on an individual’s body, comment about an individual’s sexual activity, 

deficiencies, or prowess; 

 

 Displaying sexually suggestive objects, pictures, cartoons; 

 

 Leering, whistling, brushing against the body, sexual gestures, suggestive or insulting comments; 

 

 Inquiries into one’s sexual experiences; and, 

 

 Discussion of one’s sexual activities. 

 

CONSEQUENCES:  Staff members found to have engaged in acts of sexual harassment will face one or 

more of the following consequences:  (1) written reprimand and warning, (2) suspension without pay, (3) 

dismissal, and/or (4) referral to the police. 

 

Reprisals, threats or intimidation of the victim will be treated as serious offenses, which could result in 

dismissal from employment. 

 

PROCESS FOR FILING INTERNAL COMPLAINTS:  Because of the important nature of this problem, 

immediate and direct attention will be given to complaints. 

 

Please contact the Assistant Superintendent for Diversity, Equity and Human Resources, 413-362-1807, or 

the Superintendent, 413-362-1810Damany Gordon, Equity and Diversity Specialist, 413-362-1872, for 

information about filing a complaint or refer to the “Complaint Procedure for Allegations of 

Discrimination.” 



 

          GBAA page 2 

 

Workers who believe they have been subjected to sexual harassment may also, or instead, report this to the 

following State and/or Federal agencies: 

If you believe you have been subjected to unlawful sexual harassment or discrimination, you may also file 

a formal complaint with either of the government agencies set forth below.  Using the district’s internal 

reporting process does not preclude you from filing a complaint with these agencies.  Each agency has a 

short time period for filing a claim (300 days). 

 

Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) 

John F. Kennedy Federal Building 

475 Government Center 

Boston, MA  02203 

(800) 660-4000 

 

Massachusetts Commission Against Discrimination (MCAD) 

Boston Office:    Springfield Office: 

One Ashburton Place, Room 601  436 Dwight Street, Suite 220 

Boston, MA  02108   Springfield, MA  01103 

(617) 994-6000    (413) 739-2145 

 

New Bedford Office:   Worcester Office: 

800 Purchase Street, Room 501  484 Main Street, Room 320 

New Bedford, MA  02740   Worcester, MA  01608 

(508) 990-2390    (508) 453-9630 

 

  Massachusetts Commission Against Discrimination 

  One Ashburton Place 

  Sixth Floor, Room 601 

  Boston, MA  02108 

  Telephone  617-565-3200 

  Fax  617-565-3196 

  TTY  617-565-3204 

 

  Office for Civil Rights 

  U.S. Department of Education 

  J. W. McCormack Post Office and Courthouse 

  Post Office Square 

  Boston, MA  02109 

  Telephone  617-223-9662 

  Fax  617-223-9669 

  TTY  617-223-9695 

  TDD  617-223-4097 

 

 

 

 

Region Voted to Approve: 6/4/04 

Amherst Voted to Approve: 6/15/04 

Pelham Voted to Approve: 9/2/04 

Effective Date: 6/4/04 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 









  
AMHERST PUBLIC SCHOOLS, PELHAM ELEMENTARY SCHOOL, 

AND AMHERST-PELHAM REGIONAL DISTRICT POLICY MANUAL 

______________________________________________________________________________________  

            
BDFA    

SCHOOL COMMITTEES:  SCHOOL COUNCILS 
 

1. OVERALL PURPOSE OF SCHOOL COUNCILS 

The Council improves student outcomes by uniting, in responsible participation, those closest to the 

teaching-learning relationship.  Through the development of shared vision and planning, the Council 

creates a school environment which unites all members of the school community in a sense of 

belonging, commitment, and growth. 

 

2. ORGANIZATIONAL RELATIONSHIPS 

Councils assist principals by reviewing the school building budget and developing the school 

improvement plan.  Councils may also take on other responsibilities as granted by the local school 

committee.  Councils' school improvement plans are submitted to the local school 

committeeSuperintendent for review and approval. 

 

3. MEMBERSHIP 

The Principal, except as specifically defined in the law, shall have the responsibility for defining the 

composition of and forming the group pursuant to a representative process approved by the 

Superintendent and School Committee. Each principal may define the size and composition of the 

council, subject to the approval of the Superintendent, and School Committee of a representative 

process for selection.  The following conditions must be met: 

 

a. The Council shall include the principal, teachers, parents, other community members and, for the 

high school, at least one student representative.  Parent, teacher, and student members are to be 

elected by their peers. 

b. The number of parent representatives must be equal to the number of teachers who serve on the 

Council plus the principal. 

c. Not more than 50% of the council shall be made up of members who are not parents, teachers, 

students, or staff at the school. 

d. The council should be broadly representative of the racial and ethnic diversity of the school 

building and community. 

e. The principal and another member elected by the council from its membership will co-chair the 

council. 

 

4. COUNCIL RESPONSIBILITIES 

The council assists principals in: 

 

a. Adoption of educational goals for the school that are consistent with local educational policies and 

statewide student performance standards. 

b. Identifying the educational needs of students attending the school. 

c. Review of the annual school building budget proposal. 

d. Formulation of a school improvement plan. 

e. High School Council will review student handbook each spring to consider changes in disciplinary 

policy to take effect the following school year. 

 

5. SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT PLANS 

The School CommitteeSuperintendent will annually review and approve the School Improvement Plan 

for each school, which shall be shared with the appropriate School Committee. School Improvement 

Plans must include:any 

 

a. An assessment of the impact of class size on student performance; of student to teacher ratios; and 

of student to other supportive adult resources. 

b. A scheduled plan for reducing class size, if deemed necessary. 

c. Professional development for the school's staff and the allocation of any professional development 

funds in the school budget.  The plan must address the need for teachers' professional development on 

second language acquisition and on working with culturally and linguistically diverse student 

populations. 

d. Enhancement of parental involvement in the life of the school. 

Commented [DW1]: This language is from the School 

Council policy in Shutesbury. 

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25",  No bullets or

numbering



e. School safety and discipline. 

 

 

BDFA page 2 

 

 

 

 

f. Establishment of a school environment characterized by tolerance and respect for all groups.  

(LOCAL REQUIREMENT:  Each school improvement plan must include at least one objective that 

addresses the BAMSS goals.) 

g. Extra-curricular activities. 

h. Means for meeting within the regular education programs at the school, the diverse learning needs 

of as many children as possible, including children with special needs currently assigned to separate 

programs. 

i. Any further subjects the principal, in consultation with the school council, shall consider 

appropriate. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LEGAL REF: MGL 71:38Q, 71:59C 

 

Approved 11/94 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.25",  No bullets or

numbering


